
VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE / TOWN OF WESTPORT
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION

Town of Westport Community Room
5387 Mary Lake Road
May 14, 2019 6:00 PM

Agendas may change prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
Please check the posting board at the Village Hall, 500 W. Main Street,

Waunakee, Wisconsin for the current agenda.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL:  Ken Sipsma, Dean Grosskopf, Eileen Bruskewitz, Brad Zeman, Brian Malich, 
Brian Wallace

MINUTES

1 April 8, 2019

PUBLIC COMMENT

NEW BUSINESS

1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Use), 
Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport

2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on HyVee Specific Implementation Plan (Site 
Plan) and Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the Maximum Allowable Building 
Square Footage in the Woodland Crest Development

3 Update on Festival Foods Specific Implementation Plan

ADJOURN

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting 
to be in an accessible location or format should contact the municipal clerk at (608) 850-8500, 500 West Main Street, Waunakee, Wisconsin, at 
least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each 
request.

VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
TOWN OF WESTPORT BOARD AND PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission may attend this meeting. No action will be taken by 
the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission at this meeting.

Next scheduled meeting is 6/11/2019 6:00:00 PM.

1 of 74



VILLAGE OF WAUNAKEE/TOWN OF WESTPORT
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION MEETING

Town of Westport Community Room
5387 Mary Lake Road, Town of Westport

April 9, 2019 6:00 PM

Meeting Minutes

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL:  
Present:  Ken Sipsma, Dean Grosskopf, Eileen Bruskewitz, Chris Thomas, Brian Malich,
Absent:  Brad Zeman
Also Present:  Tom Wilson, Kevin Even, Tracy Meinholz, Ed Freer, Brian Bauman, Michael Stengl, 
Kylee Breaker, Shane Fry, Dan O’Callighan, Aaron Aspenson, Grant Duchac, Mike Lawton, Jerry 
Tierney, Dan Seeley.

MINUTES

1 March 12, 2019
Motion Grosskopf, second Thomas, to approve the minutes from the March 12, 2019 Joint Plan 
Commission meeting as presented. Motion carried 5-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT: None

NEW BUSINESS

1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Use), 
Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport
The applicant asked to be taken off the agenda.

2 Conceptual Review, Festival Foods, to be Located in the Kilkenny Farms West Commercial 
Center at the Southwest Corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q
Representatives from Festival Foods made a presentation showing updates as a result of working 
with Village Staff. No action taken.

3 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on a Request from Kilkenny Farms West, LLC to 
Approve a General Development Plan (GDP) for Kilkenny Farms West Commercial Center 
at the Southwest Corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q
After a brief introduction by staff, the public hearing was opened at 6:36 p.m. Dan O’Callighan 
spoke on behalf of Forward Development Group regarding concerns with impacts to traffic, 
stormwater, and utilities along with the alignment of the roadways. The public hearing was closed 
at 6:39 p.m. Motion Malich, second Grosskopf, to recommend approval of the GDP to the Village 
Board with the condition that all staff comments are resolved to the satisfaction of the Village 

Page 1 of 2MINUTES-1 April 8, 2019

2 of 74



Engineer and Village Attorney consistent with the Village Plan Commission approval. Motion 
carried.

4 Discuss and Take Action on a Certified Survey Map for Kilkenny Farms West Commercial 
Center at the Southwest Corner of Woodland Drive and County Highway Q
Motion Grosskopf, second Thomas, to recommend approval of the certified survey map to the 
Village Board with all staff concerns addressed consistent with the Village Plan Commission 
recommendation. Motion carried. 

5 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on Request by The Laurel Apartment Complex, 
Kilkenny Commons, for a Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the Maximum Height Limit 
for Portions of the Gabled Roof
Mr. Even outlined the reason for the conditional use permit to allow a portion of the roofline to 
exceed the height limit. The public hearing was opened at 6:46 p.m. There was no one present 
that wished to speak. The public hearing was closed at 6:47 p.m. Motion Thomas, second 
Bruskewitz to approve the conditional use permit for the height above 45 feet, but not to exceed 
52 feet as recommended by the Village Plan Commission. Motion carried.

6 Discuss and Take Action on Site Plan/Specific Implementation Plan for The Laurel 
Apartment Complex, Kilkenny Commons
Staff explained that the applicant has now received the CUP for the roof height, and the 
Commission can now take action on the site plan/SIP. They have been working to resolve some 
sidewalk and architectural issues and staff is pleased with the results. Motion Bruskewitz, second 
Grosskopf, to approve the SIP conditioned upon all staff comments as recommended by the 
Village Plan Commission. Motion carried.

7 Discussion of HyVee Specific Implementation Plan and Request for Conditional Use Permit
The applicant asked to be taken off the agenda.

ADJOURN
Motion Bruskewitz, second Malich, to adjourn the meeting at 6:53 p.m. Motion carried.

Respectfully Submitted:
Tracy Meinholz, Joint Plan Commission Secretary

Page 2 of 2MINUTES-1 April 8, 2019

3 of 74



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 05/14/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Use), 
Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport

ISSUE SUMMARY: This item is back on the agenda after being postponed last month at the request 
of the applicant. They would like to adjust the size of three adjacent lots located on CTH K for estate 
planning purposes. Staff will need to review hte lots and determne the appropriate zoning for each.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  None

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  None

ATTACHMENT(S): Proposed CSM and Letter of Intent

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608) 849-6276

Page 1 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

4 of 74

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


 

 

 

 

Letter of Intent 
 
 

Randy and Laura Meffert are trying to complete some estate planning for their home property and 
business that is located on County Trunk Highway “K”.  They currently own 3 parcels, the veterinary 
clinic parcel, their home parcel and a small piece of land that was purchased between the 2 parcels.  
Currently there is the existing veterinary clinic and kennels on the far western part of their land and 
their existing House and a couple of sheds/garage located toward the far eastern part of their land.  
There is a large gap of land between the 2 existing structures that the Meffert’s had always intended 
to create an additional residential parcel.  As part of the estate planning, they also would like to make 
the veterinary clinic parcel smaller for when Laura retires and they sell the business. 
 
The proposed rezone and CSM request would modify/solidify the Veterinary Clinic parcel and zoning, 
square up and give the Meffert’s existing home and buildings more room for side and rear yards, and 
would create 1 new residential lot between the existing structures.  It is understood that a new 
driveway would most likely not be approved by the county and a shared driveway would be necessary 
for the is new lots access. 
 
The proposed veterinary clinic parcel would be zoned Commercial and would be 3.10 acres.  the 
proposed new residential lot would be zoned A-1 and would be 6.19 acres.  The Meffert’s existing 
home site would also be zoned A-1 and would be 7.06 acres.   
 
There are no plans for changes to any of the properties at this time.  At a later date, the new 
residential lot could be sold off and a new owner would need to apply for building permits at that time. 

 

104A WEST MAIN STREET, WAUNAKEE, WI 53597 

NOA T. PRIEVE  and CHRIS W. ADAMS 
PHONE: 1‐608‐255‐5705  WEB: WILLIAMSONSURVEYING.COM 

Page 2 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

5 of 74



NA, ParcelText

Page 3 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

6 of 74

Owner
Polygon Line

Owner
Polygon Line

Owner
Polygon Line



Page 4 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

7 of 74



Page 5 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

8 of 74



Page 6 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

9 of 74



Page 7 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

10 of 74



Page 8 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

11 of 74



STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM
TOWN OF WESTPORT

REGULAR PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
Kennedy Administration Building

Community Meeting Room
5387 Mary Lake Road

Town of Westport, Wisconsin

Monday, April 8, 2019   7:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment On Matters Not On the Agenda

3. Approve Minutes.
For the 3/11/19 meeting minutes. 

4. Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Uses),
Meffert/Pineview, 5964 and 6000 CTH K

The Mefferts would like to take the three parcels they have along CTH K, which include an
open parcel, their home, and the Pineview Vet Clinic and Hospital, and recreate them in a size
and zoning classification for each which makes sense.  They have the appropriate zoning now
for all, but would really like to size the vet facility parcel to better fit the use and buildings. 
This would mean taking land from that parcel and adding it to the smaller parcel which is
sandwiched between the home and vet facility.  There is a previous land division for the home
site which did restrict the property to no further land division, so that is something to take in to
consideration.  Right now it is arguable whether this sandwiched parcel is buildable based on
its size, these previous restrictions, and because it appears it might have been purchased by the
owners of the home lot from the neighboring parcel to add land needed to make sure the
buildings were legally placed.  You could clarify that buildability one way or the other here. 
All of the land except that on which the vet facility sits is zoned County RH-3 to allow rural
homes (8 acres minimum) and located in the Waunakee ETZ area.  The land between the
clinic and the home is farmed currently.  

If you do clarify that the middle parcel is buildable, then it should probably share a driveway
with the current home to limit access on CTH K, the no further land division or building site
creation restriction should carry through, and we may want to them straighten the parcel
border to create a more appropriately and even sized lot rather than have two odd shaped lots
here.

The lands are within the Rural Preservation District of our Comprehensive Plan, which
provides that any non-farm development is not to have an adverse impact on adjoining farms. 
This land division and clarifying zoning would not impact access to the Ken Hellenbrand 220
acre farmed land north and east of these parcels.

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\190408MM.wpd
0401191534

Page 9 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

12 of 74



RECOMMENDATION:  This is a consult so no action is to be taken but please advise the
owners of concerns.

5. Park Committee Report/Items for Action
Terry, if present, will give a report on recent Committee work.

6. Historic Preservation Committee Report/Items for Action
Joe, if present, will give a report on recent Committee work. 

7. Waunakee/Westport Joint Planning Committee Report/Items for Action
 An oral report will be provided as necessary.

8. Middleton/Westport Joint Zoning Committee Report/Items for Action
An oral report will be provided as necessary.

9. Miscellaneous/Forthcoming Events
An oral report will be provided as necessary. 

10. Adjourn

F:\MyFiles\wp6data\PLANCOM\190408MM.wpd
0401191534

Page 10 of 10NEW BUSINESS-1 Initial Consultation, Lot Line...

13 of 74



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 05/13/2019 

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING

TITLE: Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on HyVee Specific Implementation Plan (Site Plan) and 
Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the Maximum Allowable Building Square Footage in the Woodland 
Crest Development

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Attached is the CU and SIP for consideration for the HyVee plan.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conditionally Approve

RECOMMENDED MOTION: See attached documents 

ATTACHMENT(S): SIP Application, Staff comments and SIP and CUP approval forms prepared by 
the Village Attorney.

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608) 849-6276

Page 1 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

14 of 74

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


 
 1 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
 

Pursuant Chapter 133, Article 5, and Section 133-19 of the Village of Waunakee 
Zoning Code, and pursuant to the General Development Plan for the Woodland Crest 
Development, the Village of Waunakee / Town of Westport Joint Plan Commission (the 
“Joint Plan Commission”) hereby issues the conditional use permit, as set forth herein, to 
the Applicant, Hy-Vee, Inc., an Iowa corporation. 

 
Recitals 

 
A. The Applicant has acquired, or has a right to acquire, Lot 1 of the plat of 

Woodland Crest, recorded with the Dane County Register of Deeds Office on the 
____ day of __________, 2019, in Volume ___-_____ of Plats, pages ___ to ___, 
as Document No. ________, located in the Village of Waunakee, Dane County, 
Wisconsin (the “Property”).  

 
B. The Applicant proposes to construct and operate a grocery store on the Property, 

which grocery store shall have more than 50,000 square feet of floor area, thereby 
requiring a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 133-19 of the Village of 
Waunakee Zoning Code.  

 
C. The Joint Plan Commission held a public hearing on the Applicant’s conditional 

use permit application on May 14, 2019, which public hearing was properly 
noticed.  

 
Issuance of Conditional Use Permit with Conditions 

 
1. The Joint Plan Commission finds that the standards set forth in Sections 133-19 

and 133-936 of the Village of Waunakee Zoning Code are satisfied by granting the 
Applicant the conditional use permit as set forth herein. 

 
2. The Joint Plan Commission approves the building size for the grocery store, and 

finds that the following conditions shall apply to the conditional use permit 
granted herein: 

 
a. The Applicant shall construct the grocery store pursuant to the site plan and 

specific implementation plan approved by the Joint Plan Commission.  
 
b. [Insert additional conditions.] 
 

3. The Joint Plan Commission reserves the right to revoke this conditional use permit 
if the Applicant fails to satisfy any of the conditions identified in Section 2 and 

Page 2 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

15 of 74



 
 2 

maintains all of its powers and authority over the conditional use permit as set 
forth in the Village Zoning Code. 

 
 

The Conditional Use Permit set forth herein was issued by the Village of 
Waunakee / Town of Westport Joint Plan Commission on May 14, 2019. 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Ken Sipsma, Joint Plan Commission Chair 
 
 
      ________________________________  
      Tracy Meinholz, Joint Plan Commission Clerk 

 

Page 3 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

16 of 74



SPECIFIC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF LOT 1 

OF THE PLAT OF WOODLAND CREST 
(HY-VEE SIP) 

 
 The undersigned, Hy-Vee, Inc., an Iowa 
corporation (“Hy-Vee”), owner of Lot 1 of the plat of 
Woodland Crest, recorded with the Dane County 
Register of Deeds Office on the ____ day of 
__________, 2019, in Volume ___-_____ of Plats, 
pages ___ to ___, as Document No. ________, 
located in the Village of Waunakee, Dane County, 
Wisconsin (the “Property”), submits the following 
Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) for the 
development of the Property, pursuant to Section 
133-896 of the Village of Waunakee Zoning Code: 
 
 1. The Property is zoned Planned Unit 
Development District (PUD) under Sections 133-892 
– 133-898 of the Village of Waunakee Zoning code, 
and is subject to the terms of the General 
Development Plan for the Property approved by the 
Village Board. 
 
 2. The use of the Property shall be 
limited to a grocery store and convenience store with accessory facilities as identified in the 
General Development Plan.  No other uses shall be permitted on the Property without the 
approval of the Village of Waunakee.  
 
 3. The improvements on the Property shall be constructed substantially in 
accordance with the site plan approved by the Village of Waunakee – Town of Westport Joint 
Plan Commission on May 14, 2019, including, but not limited to, the approved exterior building 
plans and images, site layout plan, utility plan, grading plan, storm water pollution prevention 
plan, site photometric plan, site landscaping plan and exterior elevations, all identified as 
follows: 

 
Sheet Number Description   Issue Date 

    Floor Plan    
    Exterior Elevations   
    Existing Site Plan   
    Storm water Pollution  
    Prevention Plan 
    Site Utility Plan   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 

RETURN TO: 

Village of Waunakee 
Attn: Village Clerk 
500 W. Main Street 
Waunakee, WI 53597  

P.I.N. 

 

Page 4 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

17 of 74



 2

 
Sheet Number Description   Issue Date 

    Site Grading Plan   
    Site Layout Plan   
    Site Landscape Plan   
    Site Detail Sheet   
    Landscape Detail Sheet  
    Site Photometric Plan  
    North East Perspective  
    North West Perspective  
    East Elevation   
    North Elevation   
    South West Perspective  
 
The above-referenced plans, elevations, and images are incorporated herein by 

reference.  Any material changes to such plans, elevations, and images must be approved 
by the Village of Waunakee. 

 
4. It is anticipated that construction by Hy-Vee on the Property in accordance 

with this Specific Implementation Plan will commence in 2020, and will be completed in 
2021, although these dates are subject to change.  

 
5. This instrument may not be amended without the consent of the Village of 

Waunakee. 
 

 
[Signature Page Follows] 

Page 5 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

18 of 74



 3

 
 
 Dated this _____ day of ___________________, 2019. 
 
     HY-VEE, INC. 
 
 
 
     By: ________________________ 
                 Peter Hosch, Vice President 
 
     By:      _______________________ 
       Nathan Allen, Assistant Secretary 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA,  
COUNTY OF POLK, ss 
 

On this ____ day of _______________, 20____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary 
Public in and for the state of Iowa, personally appeared Peter Hosch and Nathan Allen, to me 
personally known, who being by me duly sworn did say that they are the Vice President and 
Assistant Secretary, respectively, of Hy-Vee, Inc., an Iowa corporation, that the instrument to 
which this is attached was signed on behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of 
Directors; and that the said Peter Hosch and Nathan Allen as such officers acknowledged the 
execution of said instrument to be the voluntary act and deed of said corporation, by it and by 
them voluntarily executed. 
 
 

________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the 
State of Iowa  

Page 6 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

19 of 74



 4

CERTIFICATION OF APPROVAL 
 

 The aforesaid Specific Implementation Plan was approved by the Village of Waunakee – 
Town of Westport Joint Plan Commission on May 14, 2019. 
 
 Dated this ____ day of __________________, 2019. 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Tracy Meinholz, Joint Plan Commission Clerk 
 
This instrument drafted by 
Bryan Kleinmaier, Esq. 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP 
222 W. Washington Ave., Ste. 900 
Madison, WI  53701 
 

Page 7 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

20 of 74



Page 8 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

21 of 74



  
 

 
RKS:tll\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2019 Site Plan Comments\3. HyVee SIP_CUP\HyVee_Woodland Crest Comments 4_02_19.docx 

April 2, 2019 
 
 
Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
500 West Main Street 
P.O. Box 100 
Waunakee, WI  53597 
 
Re: HyVee Site Plan and Woodland Crest Development Improvements 
 
Dear Kevin, 
 
HyVee Site Plan 
 
We last provided comments on the HyVee site plan in June 2018. Revised plans, dated 
February 15, 2019, were provided to address the June 2018 comments. We did not review the entire plan 
set; we only reviewed the outstanding items from the last letter. Below is a summary of the two requested 
corrections.  
 
In June 2018, we asked that the applicant create a disconnection between the grocery parking lot and 
convenience store parking lot at the west side of those lots, as this provided a straight access to 
Sarah Lane. This was to be a compromise to removing the access to Sarah Lane, which we felt was too 
close to CTH Q. The applicant has instead removed the access to Sarah Lane, which is the preferred 
solution.  
 
The applicant has also provided a sidewalk along Woodland Drive through access drive, including 
through the directional island that prevents left turns. This comment was satisfactorily addressed.  
 
Finally, the applicant should confirm that no additional revisions were made to the drawings since 
June 2018 that would require a review of those changes.  
 
Woodland Crest Development Improvements 
 
We last provided comments on the Woodland Crest Development Improvements on February 28, 2019. 
The entirety of those comments, which are attached to this letter, still need to be addressed.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 
 
 
 
 
R. Kent Straus, P.E. 
 
Enclosure 
 
c/enc.: Todd Schmidt, Administrator, Village of Waunakee 
 Tim Herlitzka, Village of Waunakee Utilities 
 Bryan Kleinmeier, Stafford Rosenbaum 
 Ed Freer, Graef 

Page 9 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

22 of 74



 

 
 

 
RKS:sjl\\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2019 Site Plan Comments\2.  Woodland Crest\Woodland Crest Comments 2_26_19.docx 

February 28, 2019   
 
 
Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
500 West Main Street 
P.O. Box 100 
Waunakee, WI  53597 
 
Re: Woodland Crest Development Plan 
 Village of Waunakee (Village) 
 
Dear Kevin, 
 
In June 2018, we provide comments on drawings showing proposed public improvements for the 
Woodland Crest development. We have received revised drawings dated February 15, 2019 intended to 
address our June 2018 comments. The following items from our June 20, 2018 letter still appear to be 
unaddressed.   
 
Under Streets, the applicant should list the pavement thicknesses for CTH Q on Sheet C5 of the Public 
Improvement Plans. 
 
Also, truck turning templates show that delivery vehicles using the Woodland Drive and Simon Crestway 
intersection will track into adjacent or opposing lanes when turning. Revise the design of the intersection 
so that all turning movements (WB-67 for south leg, S -BUS-40 for north leg) stay within their own lane 
and do not track over opposing lanes.  
 
Under Plat, it appears that not all items listed in our June 20, 2018 letter were addressed. Those items 
are repeated below for convenience, and a markup of the Plat is enclosed showing the locations of these 
comments on the document for convenience.  
 
Sheet 1 of 2: 

▪ The right of way (ROW) may vary on sections of the abutting roads, but the individual widths 

should still be shown where the ROW bends. See enclosed copy of Westbridge for an example.  

▪ The individual distances on the west side do not add up (exactly) to the overall distance.  

▪ The curve numbers on the plat and in the table do not match those shown on the Preliminary 

Plat. Should the two documents match? 

▪ The bearing reference should be better defined by year. For example, “NAD 83 (fill in year 

here)” because the numbers will change depending on the year.  

▪ There are still issues with the three-sided bump out on the east side. The Final Plat Surveyors 

Certificate does not match the plat. The three courses around the bump out are not included. The 

areas on the Final and Preliminary Plats differ. The Preliminary Plat area matches our closure 

check and the same with the Final Plat. Are the three courses supposed to be in the Final Plat? 

▪ Why is the notation “Lands” shown in this area of the three-sided bump out? That is generally 

used to show the status of adjacent non-platted lands outside the plat boundary.  

▪ What is the dashed line for in the same area? Notate or remove for clarity.  

 

Page 10 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

23 of 74



Mr. Kevin Even, P.E. 
Village of Waunakee 
Page 2 
February 28. 2019 

 

 

 
RKS:sjl\\S:\MAD\1600--1699\1602\701\WRD\2019 Site Plan Comments\2.  Woodland Crest\Woodland Crest Comments 2_26_19.docx 

Sheet 2 of 2: 

▪ If the parcel is annexed into the Village prior to the recording of this plat, the Certificate for 

Dane County is not required. Dane County is an Objecting Authority only.  

▪ If the parcel is annexed into the Village prior to the recording of this plat, Dane County should 

be added to the Owners Certificate in addition to State of Wisconsin and Village. We believe 

Dane County is an Objecting Authority even in villages. Verify and revise as necessary.  

▪ If the parcel is not annexed into the Village prior to recording of this plat, there will need to be 

changes in the corporate limit line and certificates mentioned above. 

▪ Verify the description in the Surveyors Certificate, checking against each course on the face of 

the Final Plat on Sheet 1 of 2. They must match. Verify the area as well and edit as necessary.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 
 
 
 
R. Kent Straus, P.E. 
 
Enclosures 
 
c:  Todd Schmidt, Administrator, Village of Waunakee 
 Tim Herlitzka, Village of Waunakee Utilities 
 Bryan Kleinmeier, Stafford Rosenbaum 
 Ed Freer 
 

Page 11 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

24 of 74



 
1702 PANKRATZ STREET, MADISON, WI 53704 

P (608) 242-7779  •  TF (800) 446-0679  •  F (608) 242-5664 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM  

Page 1 of 2 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Woodland Crest_Hy-Vee\MSA HyVee memo 2019_5_3.docx 

 

Memo 
  

 

 To: Village of Waunakee Plan Commission 

 From: Jason Valerius, AICP 

 Subject: HyVee SIP and CUP – Parking and Impervious Surface 

 Date: May 3, 2019 
     
 

Request 

Applicant (Hy-Vee, Inc.) is requesting approval of a Specific Implementation Plan and Conditional Use Permit for a 
57,250 SF grocery store and 4,460 SF convenience store on a 10.4 acre site at the southeast corner of Hwy Q and 
Woodland Dr.   
 
This review is addressing only the proposed parking for the site. 
 
Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations 

• Sec. 133-995. - Parking requirements.  
• Sec. 133-19. - Retail building size. 

 
Consistency with the Village Zoning Ordinance 

 
The ordinance requires, for retail businesses, 1 stall per 200 square feet of floor area used for customer sales or 
service, also stated as 5 stalls per 1,000 SF of customer floor area.   
 
The proposed grocery store has a total footprint of 57,250 SF and an estimated 45,800 SF of customer space (an 
assumption of 80% of the total floor area).  There are 375 parking spaces provided for the grocery store, or 8.2 per 
1,000 net SF.  This is 146 more stall than required by the ordinance. 
 
The proposed convenience store and coffee shop has a total footprint of 4,460 SF and an estimated 3,568 SF of 
customer space (again, 80% of gross area).  There are 35 parking spaces provided, not including the 14 gas pumps 
(where people often leave their vehicles while walking into the store).  The 35 stalls equate to 9.8 per 1,000 net SF. 
 
The Village ordinance does not have a parking maximum.  However, the Retail Building Size ordinance addresses 
concerns about the visual and ecological impacts of large parking areas, including a limit on total impervious area 
(70% of the site), a requirement for stormwater practices that minimize runoff and maximize on-site infiltration, and 
extra landscaping to screen and buffer large parking areas.  The site is more than 30% pervious (if including the wet 
ponds) and it is my understanding based on the analyses of others that the site has sufficient stormwater detention 
and infiltration areas to meet the requirements of the Village’s stormwater ordinance.  

Page 12 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

25 of 74



MEMO 
May 3, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
\\msa-ps.com\fs\Projects\1600s\1630s\1631\01631004\Documents\Woodland Crest_Hy-Vee\MSA 
HyVee memo 2019_5_3.docx 

I am concerned that the parking proposed for these uses is excessive, and therefore inconsistent with the Village’s 
intent to limit the visual and ecological impacts of a large parking lot. While the stormwater management features  
appear to mitigate the ecological impact, the net result is more infrastructure to maintain.   
 
As indicated in this comparison, other communities in the area require less parking than Waunakee.   
 
 Grocery Store C-Store 
Proposal 57,250 gross/45,800 net 4,460 gross, 3,568 net 
 375 spaces 35 spaces 
 8.2/1,000 net SF, 6.5/1,000 gross SF)  (9.8 /1,000 net SF, 7.8/1,000 gross SF) 
Ordinance Requirements 
Waunakee (5 spaces/1,000 net SF) 229 spaces 18 spaces 
Middleton (3.33 spaces/1,000 gross SF) 191 spaces 15 spaces 
Sun Prairie (3.33 spaces/1,000 gross SF) 191 spaces 15 spaces 
Sauk City (3.33 spaces/1,000 gross SF) 191 spaces 15 spaces 
Verona (3.33 spaces/1,000 gross SF) 191 spaces 15 spaces 
 
As another point of comparison, consider these estimates of the building area and parking spaces for some of the 
existing Hy-Vee stores in the region: 
 
Madison East (105,000 SF) 383 spaces (3.65/1,000 gross SF) 
Madison West (84,000 SF) 429 spaces (5.1/1,000 gross SF)* 
Fitchburg (81,300 SF) 349 spaces (4.3/1,000 gross SF) 
*the Madison West store parking is partially shared with TJ Maxx 
     
MSA Recommendation 

I encourage the applicant to consider saving some money and reducing the visual and ecological impact of these 
stores by reducing parking.  I suggest that 4.5 spaces per 1,000 gross square feet is a reasonable maximum for the 
grocery store, which is still higher than other stores in the area.  That would equate to a cap of 258 total stalls, 117 
less than proposed.  Those 117 stalls and the associated aisles require about 1 acre of impervious paving, space that 
could be green and pervious, and/or could accommodate infill with other uses. 
 
Because the large store requires a conditional use permit, and because the standards of the conditional use permit 
ordinance are clearly intended to limit the negative effects of large parking areas, I encourage Plan Commission and 
Village Board to impose an upper limit on parking as a condition of approval for this use. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. 

 
Jason Valerius, AICP        
Consultant Planner 

 

Page 13 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

26 of 74



Page 14 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

27 of 74



Page 15 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

28 of 74



Page 16 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

29 of 74



Page 17 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

30 of 74



Page 18 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

31 of 74



Page 19 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

32 of 74



Page 20 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

33 of 74



Page 21 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

34 of 74



Page 22 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

35 of 74



Page 23 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

36 of 74



Page 24 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

37 of 74



Page 25 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

38 of 74



Page 26 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

39 of 74



Page 27 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

40 of 74



Page 28 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

41 of 74



Page 29 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

42 of 74



Page 30 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

43 of 74



Page 31 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

44 of 74



Page 32 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

45 of 74



Page 33 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

46 of 74



Page 34 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

47 of 74



Page 35 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

48 of 74



Page 36 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

49 of 74



Page 37 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

50 of 74



Page 38 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

51 of 74



Page 39 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

52 of 74



Page 40 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

53 of 74



Page 41 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

54 of 74



Page 42 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

55 of 74



Page 43 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

56 of 74



Page 44 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

57 of 74



Page 45 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

58 of 74



Page 46 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

59 of 74



Page 47 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

60 of 74



Page 48 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

61 of 74



Page 49 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

62 of 74



Page 50 of 50NEW BUSINESS-2 Public Hearing and Discussion/Action...

63 of 74



WAUNAKEE/WESTPORT JOINT PLAN COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: 05/13/2019 

ITEM: NEW BUSINESS

TITLE: Update on Festival Foods Specific Implementation Plan

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Festival Foods wishes to present updated plans as a result of working through 
the process with staff. This item will be on the June 10 agenda for formal action including a public 
hearing.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None at this time.

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No action necessary.

ATTACHMENT(S): SIP Plans

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  kevin@waunakee.com  or  (608) 849-6276

Page 1 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

64 of 74

mailto:kevin@waunakee.com


SM Proposed Festival Foods 
WAUNAKEE, WISCONSIN 

© 2019 Somerville, Inc. This drawing may not be reproduced without the written permission of Somerville, Inc. 

Page 2 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

65 of 74



SM Proposed Festival Foods 
WAUNAKEE, WISCONSIN 

© 2019 Somerville, Inc. This drawing may not be reproduced without the written permission of Somerville, Inc. 

Page 3 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

66 of 74



SM Proposed Festival Foods 
WAUNAKEE, WISCONSIN 

© 2019 Somerville, Inc. This drawing may not be reproduced without the written permission of Somerville, Inc. 

Page 4 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

67 of 74



EL. 131'-4"
T/ WALL

STN-1

CLR-3

CMU-1

CMU-4

CLR-2

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

EL. 138'-0"
T/ ROOF

CLR-3

MP-1

MP-3

CLR-1

MP-4

CLR-1

EL. 128'-0"
T/ MASONRY

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

EL. 138'-0"
T/ ROOF

MP-2

CLR-1

STN-1

MP-3

CLR-1

CMU-1

CMU-4

CLR-2

CMU-2

MP-4

CLR-1

EL. 131'-4"
T/ WALL

ENCLOSURE W/ PLASTIC PRIVACY 
SLATS LOADING DOCK GUARDRAIL (TYP.)

CLR-1

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

CMU-1

CMU-4

CLR-2

MP-4

CLR-1

EL. 100'-0"
FIRST FLOOR

EL. 138'-0"
T/ ROOF

CMU-1

EL. 130'-8"
T/ ROOF

CLR-3

EL. 130'-0"
T/ WALL

EL. 120'-8"
T/ STONE

STN-1

MP-3

CLR-1

MP-1

CLR-1

SIGNAGE OVER METAL 
MESH PANEL

MP-2

CLR-1MP-3

CLR-1 EL. 132'-4"
T/ ROOF

LANDSCAPE PLANTER 
AND SEATING AREA

STN-1 LANDSCAPE PLANTER 

CLR-3

Project No.

Sheet:

Date:

Th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

iss
io

n 
of

 
So

m
er

vi
lle

, I
nc

.  
Pe

rm
iss

io
n 

or
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

em
ai

lin
g:

 P
la

nr
eq

ue
st

s@
so

m
er

vi
lle

in
c.

co
m

Re
vi

si
on

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
D

at
e

design
matterssm

So
m

er
vi

lle
, I

nc
.

c

4/8/2019 7:14:26 AM

SK
O

G
E

N
'S

 F
E

ST
IV

A
L 

FO
O

D
S

N
E

W
 S

TO
R

E
 F

O
R

:

W
A

U
N

A
K

EE
, W

IS
C

O
N

SI
N

6941

4/8/19

A301a

20
19

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

MARK DESCRIPTION

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
KAWNEER TRIFAB VERSAGLAZE 451T OR EQUAL
2" x 4 1/2" MINIMUM DIMENSION (PROVIDE CALCULATIONS
FOR EACH OPENING)
ANODIZED ALUMINUM (CLEAR)
1" THERMALLY BROKEN LOW E GLAZING

NOTE:
THE MATERIALS LISTED BELOW ARE THE BASIS OF DESIGN.
SUBCONTRACTORS MAY SUBMIT ALTERNATE  MATERIALS. HOWEVER,
IT IS THE ARCHITECT'S OPTION TO REJECT OR APPROVE ANY OF THE
ALTERNATES SUBMITTED.

SPLIT-FACE CMU
COUNTY MATERIALS CORPORATION OR EQUAL
SPLIT-FACE
RUNNING BOND
1 COAT OF BLOCK FILLER (PRIMER)
2 COATS OF ELASTOMERIC PAINT - SW7068 - GRIZZLE GRAY

CMU-1

SMOOTH-FACE CMU
COUNTY MATERIALS CORPORATION OR EQUAL
SMOOTH-FACE
RUNNING BOND
1 COAT OF BLOCK FILLER (PRIMER)
2 COATS OF ELASTOMERIC PAINT - SW7051 - ANALYTICAL GRAY

CMU-2

PREFINISHED METAL
FACTORY FINISH
UNACLAD "CHARCOAL"

CLR-1

PREFINISHED METAL
FACTORY FINISH
UNACLAD "SANDSTONE"

CLR-2

STONE VENEER
EDEN - VALDERS STONE
EDEN MACHINE CUT VENEER

STN-1

METAL WALL PANEL
RIB PROFILE ALUMINUM WALL PANEL - HORIZONTAL
PAC CLAD "SILVER"

MP-1

METAL WALL PANEL
ALUMINUM WALL PANEL - 2" PROJECTION, 1" REVEAL
CUSTOM COLOR GREEN

MP-2

METAL WALL PANEL
ALUMINUM WALL PANEL - 6" V-GROOVE PLANK
WOOD GRAIN PATTERN - "ITALIAN ROSEWOOD"

MP-3

SMOOTH-FACE CMU
COUNTY MATERIALS CORPORATION OR EQUAL
SMOOTH-FACE
RUNNING BOND
1 COAT OF BLOCK FILLER (PRIMER)
2 COATS OF ELASTOMERIC PAINT - SW7068 - GRIZZLE GRAY

CMU-3

SPLIT-FACE CMU
COUNTY MATERIALS CORPORATION OR EQUAL
SPLIT-FACE
RUNNING BOND
1 COAT OF BLOCK FILLER (PRIMER)
2 COATS OF ELASTOMERIC PAINT - SW7051 - ANALYTICAL GRAY

CMU-4

PAINTED STEEL
PAINT - SW7068 - GRIZZLE GRAY

CLR-3

METAL WALL PANEL
ALUMINUM WALL PANEL - 2" PROJECTION, 1" REVEAL
BROWN

MP-4

Page 5 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

68 of 74



STOP

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

21 TIY
18 IH

BIKE RACK
6GVB
2 FAH

10 GMS
BENCH (TYP)

16 KFRG

8 KFRG
5 GMB

BIKE RACK

5 KFRG
6 MKL

15 AJS
24 KFRG
6 KCPJ

5 KFRG

STORMWATER SEED MIX

NO MOW
SEED MIX

5 RJFC

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

1 AGM1 GSL

1 ABM

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

1 PPH
5 WRW

6 GLS

1 SFS
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

4 WRW
1 GSL

10 HRD

5 GLS

31 KFRG
13 RRD

17 RRD
10 KFRG

5 PPSR
48 PDS

11 HRD

5 NS

1 VFE
1 SP

3 NS

1 SHL
5 NS

1 KCT
4 BHS

1 KCT
5 BHS
1 SWO

4 NS
1 TCH

2 ABS
1 SP

3 NS

5 CF 2 TCH
1 AGM

2 PFC

3 CF

1 SP

3 NS

3 ABS

3 CF
5 BHS

3 BHS
1 SWO1 SP

1 SWO
5 NS

2 CF

1 KCT

1 KCT 1 PPH

14 BRC9 KFRG
8 AWS

1 PPH
5 WRW

6 GLS

1 SWO

1 GMSM

1 HRB

2 SP

1 GSL

1 PFC

1 GMSM

3 CF

1 GMSM

2 AFC

2 NS

1 VFE

3 BHS

3 TCH

3 ABS

2 NS

1 HRB

3 NS

2 JTL

1 AFC

2 JTL

1 AFC

1 NS

1 PPH1 GMSM

1 AGM

2 ABS

1 TCH1 VFE

7 MKL
8 SGJ

6 MV
8 SGJ

7 MKL
8 SGJ

7 MV
8 SGJ

2 RPM

1 RPM

2 RPM

3 RJFC

10 HCJ

STORMWATER SEED MIX

STORMWATER SEED MIX

1 HRB

1 HRB

7 KFRG
10 BRC

9 AJAV

8 AJAV

7 MKL

8 BRC

5 BRC

8 MV

7 BRC

5 AJAV

18 WRW
30 KCPJ

18" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

16" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

1 SHL
10 MKL

7 MKL
26 KFRG

DECOMPOSED GRANITE

2 BHS

1 ABM
1 PPH
1 BHS

1 GMSM

3 CF

3 NS

17 AJS
7 GLS

6 IH

2 PPH

1 PPH

1 GSL

3 CF

1 ABM

1 AGM

1 AGM

1 SWO

3 CF

3 BHS

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SFS
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

1 HRB

1 AFC

1 GSL

STORMWATER SEED MIX

4 PPSR
5 GLS

1 KCT

ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

©2018 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Always a Better Plan
100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NUMBER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

O
CE

RY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R:

FE
ST

IV
AL

 F
O

O
DS

, I
N

C.
CT

Y 
RD

 Q
 ●

 W
AU

NA
KE

E,
 W

I 5
35

97

OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN


PLANT ABBREVIATIONS

STORMWATER SEED MIX

Scale: 1" = 40'0"

CODE REQUIREMENTS

DIGGERS HOTLINE

HELLER &
ASSOCIATES, LLC

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E

P.O. Box 1359
Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 53147-1359
ph 262.639.9733
david@wdavidheller.com
www.wdavidheller.com

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N

PRELIMINARY DATES

Page 6 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

69 of 74



STOP

21 TIY
18 IH

BIKE RACK
6GVB
2 FAH

10 GMS
BENCH (TYP)

16 KFRG

8 KFRG
5 GMB

BIKE RACK

STORMWATER SEED MIX

5 RJFC

1 GSL

5 NS

1 VFE
1 SP

3 NS

1 SHL
5 NS

1 KCT
4 BHS

1 KCT
5 BHS
1 SWO

4 NS
1 TCH

2 ABS
1 SP

3 NS

5 CF 2 TCH
1 AGM

2 PFC

3 CF

1 SP

3 NS

3 ABS

3 CF
5 BHS

3 BHS
1 SWO1 SP

1 SWO
5 NS

2 SP

1 GSL

1 PFC

1 GMSM

1 GMSM

3 RJFC

10 HCJ

1 HRB

1 HRB

7 KFRG
10 BRC

5 AJAV

18 WRW
30 KCPJ

18" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

16" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

DECOMPOSED GRANITE

2 BHS

1 ABM
1 PPH
1 BHS

1 GMSM

1 GSL

3 CF

1 ABM

1 AGM

3 CF

ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

©2018 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Always a Better Plan
100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NUMBER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

O
CE

RY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R:

FE
ST

IV
AL

 F
O

O
DS

, I
N

C.
CT

Y 
RD

 Q
 ●

 W
AU

NA
KE

E,
 W

I 5
35

97

ENLARGED LANDSCAPE PLAN


Scale: 1" = 20'0"

DIGGERS HOTLINE

HELLER &
ASSOCIATES, LLC

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E

P.O. Box 1359
Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 53147-1359
ph 262.639.9733
david@wdavidheller.com
www.wdavidheller.com

PLANT ABBREVIATIONS

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N

PRELIMINARY DATES

Page 7 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

70 of 74



STOP

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

21 TIY
18 IH

BIKE RACK
6GVB
2 FAH

10 GMS
BENCH (TYP)

16 KFRG

8 KFRG
5 GMB

BIKE RACK

5 KFRG
6 MKL

15 AJS
24 KFRG
6 KCPJ

5 KFRGNO MOW
SEED MIX

5 RJFC

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

1 AGM1 GSL

1 ABM

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

1 SFS
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

4 WRW
10 HRD

5 PPSR
48 PDS

11 HRD

5 NS

1 VFE
1 SP

3 NS

1 SHL
5 NS

1 SWO

1 AFC

2 JTL

1 AFC

1 NS

1 PPH1 GMSM

1 AGM

2 ABS

1 TCH1 VFE

6 MV
8 SGJ

7 MKL
8 SGJ

7 MV
8 SGJ

2 RPM

1 RPM

2 RPM

10 HCJ

7 KFRG
10 BRC

9 AJAV

8 AJAV

7 MKL

8 BRC

5 BRC

18 WRW
30 KCPJ

18" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

16" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

1 SHL
10 MKL

DECOMPOSED GRANITE

2 BHS

3 CF

3 NS

17 AJS
7 GLS

6 IH

2 PPH

3 CF

1 ABM

1 AGM

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SFS
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

4 PPSR
5 GLS

1 KCT

ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

©2018 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Always a Better Plan
100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NUMBER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

O
CE

RY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R:

FE
ST

IV
AL

 F
O

O
DS

, I
N

C.
CT

Y 
RD

 Q
 ●

 W
AU

NA
KE

E,
 W

I 5
35

97

ENLARGED LANDSCAPE PLAN


Scale: 1" = 20'0"

DIGGERS HOTLINE

HELLER &
ASSOCIATES, LLC

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E

P.O. Box 1359
Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 53147-1359
ph 262.639.9733
david@wdavidheller.com
www.wdavidheller.com

PLANT ABBREVIATIONS

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N

PRELIMINARY DATES

Page 8 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

71 of 74



2 ABM
8 IH

2 VFE
8 IH

12 GLS

8 KFRG
5 GMB

BIKE RACK

1 PPH
5 WRW

6 GLS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

4 WRW
1 GSL

10 HRD

5 GLS

31 KFRG
13 RRD

17 RRD
10 KFRG

1 SWO
5 NS

2 CF

1 KCT

1 KCT 1 PPH

14 BRC9 KFRG
8 AWS

1 PPH
5 WRW

6 GLS 1 GMSM

1 HRB

3 CF

1 GMSM

2 AFC

2 NS

1 VFE

3 BHS

3 TCH

3 ABS

2 NS

1 HRB

3 NS

2 JTL

7 MKL
8 SGJ

6 MV
8 SGJ

2 RPM

3 RJFC

STORMWATER SEED MIX

STORMWATER SEED MIX8 MV

7 BRC

18 WRW
30 KCPJ

18" GRAVEL
MAINTENANCE STRIP

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

7 MKL
26 KFRG

1 PPH

1 GSL

1 AGM

1 SWO

3 CF

3 BHS

2 CFP
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 AH
8 PPSR

10 GLS

2 ABM
8 IH

12 GLS

2 SHL
8 IH

12 GLS

8 IH

1 HRB

1 AFC

1 GSL

STORMWATER SEED MIX

1 KCT

SHADE TREE PLANTING

REMOVE 'V' CROTCHES, STUBS, DOUBLE
LEADERS AND OVERLAPPING / RUBBING
PRUNE PLANTS (IF NEEDED) ONLY AFTER
PLANTING.
PRUNING IS SUBJECT TO TIME OF YEAR, AND
SPECIFIC TREE SPECIES.

2 N.T.S. SECTION

WRAP TREE IN FALL FOR PROTECTION FROM
DEER (IF APPLICABLE).
3" AVERAGE DEPTH MULCH OVER SOIL RING;
DO NOT PLACE MULCH AGAINST TREE TRUNK.
REMOVE BURLAP, SYNTHETIC TWINE, AND
WIRE CAGE FROM TOP 13  OF ROOTBALL.
SCORE REMAINING 23 OF BURLAP ONCE TREE
IS IN PLACE, AND STRAIGHTENED.
CAREFULLY BEND REMAINING CAGE DOWN
TO BOTTOM OF HOLE.
INSTALL ONE (1) SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKET PER 1" CALIPER OF TREE.  PLACE
AGAINST ROOT BALL.
DIG HOLE 2X WIDER THAN DIAMETER OF
ROOT BALL.
BACK FILL WITH SPECIFIED SOIL - AVOID AIR
POCKETS BY TAMPING SOIL MIXTURE IN 4"
LIFTS.
EXISTING SUBGRADE.

EVERGREEN TREE PLANTING6 SECTION

REMOVE STUBS, AND OVERLAPPING, BROKEN
OR RUBBING BRANCHES.  PRUNE PLANTS (IF
NEEDED) ONLY AFTER PLANTING.
PRUNING IS SUBJECT TO TIME OF YEAR, AND
SPECIFIC TREE SPECIES.
3" AVERAGE DEPTH MULCH OVER SOIL RING;
DO NOT PLACE MULCH AGAINST TREE TRUNK.

REMOVE BURLAP, SYNTHETIC TWINE, AND
WIRE CAGE FROM TOP 13  OF ROOTBALL.
SCORE REMAINING 2 3 OF BURLAP ONCE TREE
IS IN PLACE, AND STRAIGHTENED.
CAREFULLY BEND REMAINING CAGE DOWN
TO BOTTOM OF HOLE.
INSTALL ONE (1) SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKET PER 24" HEIGHT OF TREE.  PLACE
AGAINST ROOT BALL.
DIG HOLE 2X WIDER THAN DIAMETER OF
ROOT BALL.
BACK FILL WITH SPECIFIED SOIL - AVOID AIR
POCKETS BY TAMPING SOIL MIXTURE IN 4"
LIFTS.
EXISTING SUBGRADE.

PLANT TREE AT SAME LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT ROOT FLARE.
PLANT SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN
SURROUNDING FINISHED GRADE.

PLANT TREE AT SAME LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT ROOT FLARE.
PLANT SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN
SURROUNDING FINISHED GRADE.

WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH
A THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE
WATERING.

WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH
A THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE
WATERING.

N.T.S.

DECIDUOUS SHRUB PLANTING (B&B)7 N.T.S. SECTION

GROUNDCOVER / PERENNIAL PLANTING

PRUNE OUT DEAD & BROKEN BRANCHES;
RETAIN NORMAL PLANT SHAPE.
2-3" AVERAGE DEPTH MULCH OVER SOIL
RING;  DO NOT PLACE MULCH AGAINST
STEMS.
REMOVE BURLAP AND SYNTHETIC TWINE
FROM TOP 13  OF ROOTBALL.  SCORE
REMAINING 2 3 OF BURLAP ONCE SHRUB IS IN
PLACE.
INSTALL TWO SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKETS AGAINST ROOT BALL.
DIG HOLE 2X WIDER THAN DIAMETER OF
ROOT BALL.
BACK FILL WITH SPECIFIED PLANTING MIX -
AVOID AIR POCKETS BY TAMPING SOIL
MIXTURE IN 4" LIFTS.
WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH
A THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE
WATERING.

PRUNE OUT DEAD & BROKEN BRANCHES; RETAIN
NORMAL PLANT SHAPE.
2-3" AVERAGE DEPTH MULCH OVER SOIL RING;  DO
NOT PLACE MULCH AGAINST STEMS, OR BURY
BOTTOM BRANCHES.
REMOVE BURLAP AND SYNTHETIC TWINE FROM TOP
1

3  OF ROOTBALL.  SCORE REMAINING 23 OF BURLAP.
INSTALL ONE SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER PACKET
AGAINST ROOT BALL.
DIG HOLE 2X WIDER THAN DIAMETER OF ROOT BALL.
BACK FILL WITH SPECIFIED PLANTING MIX - AVOID
AIR POCKETS BY TAMPING MIXTURE IN 4" LIFTS.

PLANT SHRUB AT SAME LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT ROOT FLARE.

WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH A
THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE WATERING.

PLANT SHRUB AT SAME LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT ROOT FLARE.

      DECIDUOUS SHRUB PLANTING (POTTED)3 N.T.S. SECTION

DETAIL EVERGREEN SHRUB PLANTING4 N.T.S. SECTION

BALLED & BURLAPPED POTTED
FIBER POT CONTAINER

CAREFULLY REMOVE PLANT FROM
PLASTIC POT & SCORE ROOTS 1" DEEP

WITH A SHARP KNIFE.

PRUNE OUT DEAD & BROKEN BRANCHES; RETAIN
NORMAL PLANT SHAPE.
2-3" AVERAGE DEPTH MULCH OVER SOIL RING;  DO
NOT PLACE MULCH AGAINST STEMS, OR BURY
BOTTOM BRANCHES.
REMOVE BURLAP AND SYNTHETIC TWINE FROM TOP
1

3  OF ROOTBALL.  SCORE REMAINING 23 OF BURLAP.
INSTALL ONE SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER PACKETS
AGAINST ROOT BALL.
DIG HOLE 2X WIDER THAN DIAMETER OF ROOT BALL.
BACK FILL WITH SPECIFIED PLANTING MIX - AVOID
AIR POCKETS BY TAMPING MIXTURE IN 4" LIFTS.

PLANT SHRUB AT SAME
LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT
ROOT FLARE.

WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH A
THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE WATERING.

CAREFULLY REMOVE
PLANT FROM PLASTIC
POT & SCORE ROOTS

1" DEEP WITH A SHARP
KNIFE.

8 N.T.S. SECTION

PER SCHEDULE

(6-24" TYP.)

SPACING PLAN - IF NOT INDICATED ON PLANT
& MATERIAL LIST

11
2 DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

OR LEAF COMPOST
REMOVE BROKEN, BENT, DEAD OR DISEASED
LEAVES/STEMS AFTER PLANTING
CAREFULL REMOVE PLANT FROM CONTAINER;
SCORE ROOTS ON ALL SIDES; HAND TAMP INTO
PLACE TO PROTECT PLANT

WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH
A THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE
WATERING.

PLANT SHRUB AT SAME LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT ROOT FLARE.

PLANTING MIX DEPTH OF 9" TO BE
ROTO-TILLED AT ALL PERENNIAL AREAS

SPACING OF PERENNIALS WILL VARY ON THE
VARIETY OF PERENNIAL SELECTED

SPADE EDGE WHERE PLANTING BEDS MEET
LAWN AREAS.
SCARIFY EXISTING SUBGRADE.

N.T.S. SECTION

SPADE EDGE PLANT BED EDGE DETAIL5

BEDLINES ARE TO BE CUT CRISP AS PER PLAN.  A
CLEAN DEFINITION BETWEEN TURF AND PLANTING
BED IS REQUIRED.

TURF
TOPSOIL / PLANTING MIX

TOP OF MULCH SHOULD BE CRESTED 1-2" ABOVE
TURF FOR POSITIBE DRAINGE. SLOPE GRADUALLY.

2-3" (+/-) MULCH BED

DETAIL

DETAILDETAILDETAIL

DETAIL DETAIL

ORNAMENTAL GRASS PLANTING9 N.T.S. SECTION

PER SCHEDULE

(15-36" TYP.)

SPACING PLAN - IF NOT INDICATED ON PLANT
& MATERIAL LIST

11
2 DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

OR LEAF COMPOST
REMOVE BROKEN, BENT, DEAD OR DISEASED
LEAVES/STEMS AFTER PLANTING
CAREFULL REMOVE PLANT FROM CONTAINER;
SCORE ROOTS ON ALL SIDES; HAND TAMP INTO
PLACE TO PROTECT PLANT

WATER IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING WITH
A THOROUGH AND DEEP, SLOW RELEASE
WATERING.

PLANT SHRUB AT SAME LEVEL AS PREVIOUS
GROWING CONDITION AT ROOT FLARE.

PLANTING MIX DEPTH OF 9" TO BE
ROTO-TILLED AT ALL PERENNIAL AREAS

SPACING OF ORNAMENTAL GRASS WILL VARY ON
THE VARIETY OF ORNAMENTAL GRASS SELECTED

SPADE EDGE WHERE PLANTING BEDS MEET
LAWN AREAS.
SCARIFY EXISTING SUBGRADE.

DETAIL

N.T.S.

DETAIL STONE MAINTENANCE DRIP EDGE DETAIL

1
8" x 4" ALUMINUM EDGE RESTRAINT; MILL FINISH;

STAKED EVERY 24".

TURF/PLANTINGS
TOPSOIL / PLANTING MIX

TOP OF GRAVEL SHOULD BE APPROXIMATELY 1/2"
BELOW THE TOP LIP OF THE EDGE RESTRAINT.

2" LIMESTONE SCREENINGS
OR DECOMPOSED

GRANITE (COMPACTED)

3" (+/-) STONE / GRAVEL MEDIUM
(SEE PLAN FOR TYPE)

FILTER FABRIC
SUBGRADE

SECTION1

ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

©2018 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Always a Better Plan
100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NUMBER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

O
CE

RY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R:

FE
ST

IV
AL

 F
O

O
DS

, I
N

C.
CT

Y 
RD

 Q
 ●

 W
AU

NA
KE

E,
 W

I 5
35

97

ENLARGED LANDSCAPE PLAN


PLANTING & HARDSCAPE DETAILS

Scale: 1" = 20'0"

DIGGERS HOTLINE

HELLER &
ASSOCIATES, LLC

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E

P.O. Box 1359
Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 53147-1359
ph 262.639.9733
david@wdavidheller.com
www.wdavidheller.com

PLANT ABBREVIATIONS

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N

PRELIMINARY DATES

Page 9 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

72 of 74



1.  Contractor responsible for contacting Diggers Hotline (811 or 800-242-8511) to have site marked prior to excavation or planting.

2.  Contractor to verify all plant quantities shown on Plant & Material List and landscape planting symbols and report any discrepancies to Landscape Architect or
General Contractor.

3.  All plantings shall comply with standards as described in American Standard of Nursery Stock - Z60.1 ANSI (latest version).  Landscape Architect reserves
the right to inspect, and potentially reject any plants that are inferior, compromised, undersized, diseased, improperly transported, installed incorrectly or
damaged.  No sub-standard "B Grade" or "Park Grade" plant material shall be accepted.  Plant material shall originate from nursery(ies) with a similar climate as
the planting site.

4.  Any potential plant substitutions must be approved by Landscape Architect or Owner.  All plants must be installed as per sizes indicated on Plant &  Material
Schedule, unless approved by Landscape Architect.  Any changes to sizes shown on plan must be submitted in writing to the Landscape Architect prior to
installation.

5.  Topspoil in Parking Lot Islands (if applicable):  All parking lot islands to be backfilled with topsoil to a minimum depth of 18" to insure long-term plant health.
Topsoil should be placed within 3" of finish grade by General Contractor / Excavation Contractor during rough grading operations/activity.  The landscape
contractor shall be responsible for the fine grading of all disturbed areas, planting bed areas, and lawn areas.  Crown all parking lot islands a minimum of 6" to
provide proper drainage, unless otherwise specified.

6.  Tree Planting:  Plant all trees slightly higher than finished grade at the root flare.  Remove excess soil from the top of the root ball, if needed.  Remove and
discard non-biodegradable ball wrapping and support wire.  Removed biodegradable burlap and wire cage (if present) from the top 13 of the rootball and carefully
bend remaining wire down to the bottom of the hole.  Once the tree has been placed into the hole and will no longer be moved, score the remaining 23  of the
burlap and remove the twine.  Provide three slow release fertilizer for each tree planted.

7.  Tree Planting:  Backfill tree planting holes 80% existing soils removed from excavation and 20% plant starter mix.  Avoid air pockets and do not tamp soil
down.  Discard any gravel, rocks, heavy clay, or concrete pieces.  When hole is 23 full, trees shall be watered thoroughly, and water left to soak in before
proceeding to fill the remainder of the hole.  Water again to full soak in the new planting.  Each tree shall receive a 3" deep, 4-5' diameter (see planting details or
planting plan) shredded hardwood bark mulch ring around all trees planted in lawn areas.  Do not build up any mulch onto the trunk of any tree.  Trees that are
installed incorrectly will be replaced at the time and expense of the Landscape Contractor.

8.  Shrub Planting:  All shrubs to be planted in groupings as indicated on the Landscape Plan.  Install with the planting of shrubs a 50
50 mix of plant starter with

topsoil.  Install topsoil into all plant beds as needed to achieve proper grade and displace undesirable soil (see planting detail).  Remove all excessive gravel,
clay and stones from plant beds prior to planting.  When hole(s) are 2 3 full, shrubs shall be watered thoroughly, and water left to soak in before proceeding.
Provide slow-release fertilizer packets at the rater of 1 per 24" height/diamter of shrub at planting.

9.  Mulching:  All tree and shrub planting beds to receive a 3" deep layer of high quality shredded hardwood bark mulch (not pigment dyed or enviro-mulch).  All
perennial planting areas (groupings) shall receive a 2" layer of shredded hardwood bark mulch, and groundcover areas a 1-2" layer of the same mulch.  Do not
mulch annual flower beds (if applicable).  Do not allow mulch to contact plant stems and tree trunks.

10.  Edging:  All planting beds shall be edged with a 4" deep spade edge using a flat landscape spade or a mechanical edger.  Bedlines are to be cut crisp,
smooth as per plan.  A clean definition between landscape beds and lawn is required.  Pack mulch against lawn edge to hold in place.

11.  Plant bed preparation/Soil Amendment composition:  All perennial, groundcover and annual areas (if applicable) are required to receive a blend of organic
soil (Soil Amendments) amendments prior to installation.  Roto-till the following materials at the following ratio, into existing soil beds or installed topsoil beds to a
depth of approximately 8"-10".  Containerized and balled & burlapped plant material should be back-filled with amended soil:

Per 100 SF of bed area (Soil Amendment composition):
3

4 CY Peat Moss or Mushroom Compost
3

4  CY blended/pulverized Topsoil
1

4  CY composted manure

In roto-tilled beds only, also include in above mixture:
2   lbs Starter Fertilizer

12.  Lawn Installation for all sodded turfgrass areas:  Contractor to furnish and prepare blended topsoil (2" minimum) and sod bed, removing all debris and
stones 12" and larger.  Apply a 10-10-10 starter lawn fertilizer uniformly throughout areas prior to laying sod.  Use only premium sod blend according to TPI
(revised 1995) and ASPA Standards.  Install sod uniformly with staggered joints, laid tightly end to end and side to side.  Roll sod with a walk behind roller and
water immediately upon installation to a 3" depth.  Stake any sod installed on slopes steeper than 1:3, and in all swale applications.  Contractor is responsible to
provide a smooth, uniform, healthy turf, and is responsible for the first two mowings of the newly installed turf, and is also responsible for watering during this
period.

13.  Installation preparation for all seeded areas:  remove/kill off any existing unwanted vegetation prior to seeding.  Prepare the topsoil (if adequate or provide
as in item #6 above) and seed bed by removing all surface stones 1" or larger.  Apply a starter fertilizer and specified seed uniformly at the specified rate, and
provide mulch covering suitable to germinate and establish turf.  Provide seed and fertilizer specifications to Landscape Architect and Owner prior to installation.
Erosion control measures are to be used in swales and on slopes in excess of 1:3 and where applicable (see Civil Engineering Drawings).  Methods of
installation may vary are the discretion of the Landscape Contractor on his/her responsibility to establish and guarantee a smooth, uniform, quality turf.  A
minimum of 2" of blended, prepared and non-compacted topsoil is required for all lawn areas.  If straw mulch is used as a mulch covering, a tackifier may be
necessary to avoid wind dispersal of mulch covering.  Marsh hay containing reed canary grass is NOT acceptable as a mulch covering.

An acceptable quality seed installation is defined as having:
No bare spots larger than one (1) square foot
No more than 10% of the total area with bare areas larger than one (1) square foot
A uniform coverage through all turf areas

14. No-Mow seed areas:  "No-Mow" fine fescue seed mix with annual rye nurse crop (available at Cedar Creek Seed Farm 888-313-6807; or Prairie Nursery
608-296-3679) or approved equivalent mix from a reputable seed mix provider.  Apply at 220 lbs per acre or at rate recommended by supplier.  Prepare seed
bed and soil as specified in item #13 above.

15.  Native Prairie Seed Mix / Stormwater Seed Mix: Native seed mixes as listed on the Plant and Material List or other seeding schedules outlined on the
landscape plan set.  Seed mixes available from Prairie Nursery 608-296-3679 or JF New 608-848-1789 or approved equivalent mix from a reputable seed mix
provider.  Apply at rates specified herein, or per supplier recommendation.  Prepare soil and seed bed as in item #13 above.

16.  Warranty and Replacements:  All plantings are to be watered thoroughly at the time of planting, through construction and upon completion of project as
required.  Trees, Evergreens, and Shrubs (deciduous and evergreen) shall be guaranteed (100% replacement) for a minimum of one (1) year from the date of
project completion.  Perennials, groundcovers, and ornamental grasses shall be guaranteed for a minimum of one (1) growing season.  Perennials,
groundcovers, and ornamental grasses planted after September 15th shall be guaranteed through May 31st of the following year.  Only one replacement per
plant will be required during the warranty period, except for losses or replacements due to failure to comply with specified requirements.  Watering and general
ongoing maintenance instructions are to be supplied by the Landscape Contractor to the Owner upon completion of the project.

17.  The Landscape Contractor is responsible for the watering and maintenance of all landscape areas for a period of 45 days after the substantial completion of
the landscape installation.  This shall include all trees, shrubs, evergreens, perennials, ornamental grasses, turf grass, no-mow grass, and native prairie seed
mix / stormwater seed mix.  Work also includes weeding, edging, mulching (only if required), fertilizing, trimming, sweeping up grass clippings, pruning and
deadheading.

18.  Project Completion:  Landscape Contractor is responsible to conduct a final review of the project, upon completion, with the Landscape Architect, Client or
Owner / Client Representative, and the General Contractor to answer questions, provide written care instructions for new plantings and turf, and insure that all
specifications have been met.

ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

©2018 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Always a Better Plan
100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NUMBER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

O
CE

RY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R:

FE
ST

IV
AL

 F
O

O
DS

, I
N

C.
CT

Y 
RD

 Q
 ●

 W
AU

NA
KE

E,
 W

I 5
35

97

PLANT & MATERIAL SCHEDULE: FESTIVAL FOODS PARCELLANDSCAPE GENERAL NOTES

DIGGERS HOTLINE

HELLER &
ASSOCIATES, LLC

L A N D S C A P E  A R C H I T E C T U R E

P.O. Box 1359
Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 53147-1359
ph 262.639.9733
david@wdavidheller.com
www.wdavidheller.com

NO
T 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
O

N

PRELIMINARY DATES

Page 10 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

73 of 74



STOP

STOP

ARCHITECTS ● ENGINEERS ● SURVEYORS

©2018 EXCEL ENGINEERING, INC.

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Always aBetter Plan
100 Camelot Drive
Fond Du Lac, WI 54935
Phone: (920) 926-9800
www.EXCELENGINEER.com

JOB NUMBER

1868540

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

O
CE

RY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R:

FE
ST

IV
AL

 F
O

O
DS

, I
N

C.
CT

Y 
RD

 Q
 ●

 W
AU

N
AK

EE
, W

I 5
35

97
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

PRELIMINARY DATES

C1.2

SITE PLAN

JAN. 7, 2019

JAN. 8, 2019

FEB. 28, 2019

MAR. 15, 2019

APR. 12, 2019

APR. 24, 2019

MAY 6, 2019

Page 11 of 11NEW BUSINESS-3 Update on Festival Foods Specific...

74 of 74


	Agenda
	April 8, 2019
	Initial Consultation, Lot Line Adjustment and Rezone (Continue Current Use), Meffert/Pineview, CTH K, Town of Westport
	Public Hearing and Discussion/Action on HyVee Specific Implementation Plan (Site Plan) and Conditional Use Permit to Exceed the Maximum Allowable Building Square Footage in the Woodland Crest Development
	tmp99AD.tmp
	Request
	Applicable Zoning & Development Code Regulations
	Consistency with the Village Zoning Ordinance
	MSA Recommendation

	Update on Festival Foods Specific Implementation Plan
	tmpA29B.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	tmpA2AC.tmp
	Sheets
	A301a - COLORED ELEVATIONS



